
WESTPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING

PACKET
MAY 16, 2022 

07:00 PM



MAY 16, 2022 
07:00 PM

WESTPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION

BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING AGENDA*

(AGENDA SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW)

PUBLIC CALL TO ORDER
6:00 p.m., Staples High School,1025C

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Non-Union Personnel Compensation 2022-2023

RESUME PUBLIC SESSION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
7:00 p.m., Staples High School, Cafeteria B (Room 301)

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM BOARD AND ADMINISTRATION

PUBLIC QUESTIONS/COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS (15 MINUTES)

MINUTES
May 2, 2022

Attachment: Meeting_ May 2_ 2022_______Staples High School.pdf

DISCUSSION

A. Review of LLS Test Fit
Mr. David Symonds

Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

B. AP Science Program Overview
Dr. AJ Scheetz
Mr. Will Jones
Mr. Dominick Messina

Attachment: AP Science update_ Board of Education 5_16_22.pdf

C. Cooperative Games: Using Games to Study and Develop Group Process, Individual Roles and Effective Problem Solving
Ms. Christine Wanner
Mr. Jeff Doornweerd

Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

D. Mid-Quarter Financial Update
Mr. Elio Longo

Attachment: Interim Financial Report 5-16-22.pdf

DISCUSSION/ACTION

A. Approval of Pathways Academy as Alternative Education Program for 2022-2023 School Year
Mr. Michael Rizzo

Attachment: Pathways BOE Meeting Memo May 16_ 2022.docx.pdf

B. Approval of Tentative Agreement with Westport School Custodians
Mr. John Bayers

C. Approval of Tentative Agreement with Westport Educational Association of Paraprofessionals

05/16/22 Board of Education Regular Meeting Page 1 of 2



Mr. John Bayers

D. Budget Reconciliation 2022-2023
Mr. Elio Longo

05/16/22 Board of Education Regular Meeting Page 2 of 2



General (non agenda-item specific) attachments for: Board of Education Regular Meeting
May 16, 2022 @ 07:00 pm

General Attachments

- BOE Meeting Memo May 16_ 2022.pdf

05/16/22 Board of Education Regular Meeting Page 1 of 1



^ Back to Agenda ^ General Attachment: BOE Meeting Memo May 16_ 2022.pdf

WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 

THOMAS SCARICE 
Superintendent of Schools 

110 Myrtle Avenue 
Westport, Connecticut 06880 

Telephone: (203) 341-1025 
Fax: (203) 341-1029 

tscarice@westportps.org
 
 
 
To: Westport Board of Education Members 
From:  Thomas Scarice, Superintendent of Schools 
Re: May 16, 2022 Board of Education Meeting 
Date May 13, 2022 
 
Provided below for Board consideration is an overview of the meeting agenda items for May 16, 2022.  The meeting will be 
held in-person. 
 
Discussion  

 
1. Review of LLS Test Fit 

As a follow up to the comprehensive study of Long Lots Elementary School (LLS) in determining a long term holistic 
solution to the address building envelope and mechanical issues, architectural firm, QA&M, conducted a “test fit” of the  
campus to determine if a new school building could be constructed on site while students continue to attend the current 
school.  The “test fit” is one of a number of criteria that the Board has been asked to consider in advance of making a 
recommendation for a long term holistic solution for LLS.  
 
The Board has been asked to consider the impact of the following items in advance of making a recommendation to the 
town regarding a long term holistic solution for LLS (i.e build new or renovate as new): 

● Campus Test Fit 
● Hazardous Materials Abatement 
● Statutory Requirements for Renovation Status:  Connecticut Department of Administrative Services, Office of 

School Construction Grants and Review -  Renovate as New Status Form SCG-3520 
● Space Standards Requirements/Enrollment 
● Instructional Model:  within current structure and a new construction 

 
I have asked for a review of the “test fit” to be placed on the Board agenda in advance of consideration of the other criteria 
since this review will be most consequential in the recommendation.  If a new school building cannot be constructed on site 
while students continue to attend the current school, the Board will likely be restricted to a full renovation project.   
 
However, as the Board can observe in the attached “test fit” documents there are two locations on the existing campus that, 
at this initial point, can serve as an appropriate site for the construction of a new school building while students continue to 
attend the current school. Of the options, “2A” is the recommendation of the administration, in conjunction with our 
consulting architects and partners from Colliers Project Leaders. 
 
Representatives from architectural firm, QA&M, will join us and lead the conversation at the Board meeting Monday 
evening.  A subsequent Board meeting will feature the other four items listed above.  At that point, a final recommendation 
will be made to the Board from the administration to either build new, or renovate as new.   

 
2. AP Science Program Overview 

In our continued efforts to publicly share elements of our instructional program, our science team has developed a brief 
presentation outlining the current AP Science program.  Dr. AJ Scheetz, Mr. Will Jones, and Mr. Dominick Messina will 
provide an update on the program, including input from a student. The team will highlight strengths of the program and 
surface some areas identified for improvement.   

 
3. Cooperative Games: Using Games to Study and Develop Group Process, Individual Roles and Effective Problem 

Solving 
According to the district “Vision of a Graduate”:  “Contributing Citizens are emotionally and socially aware, principled in 
thought and action, kind with sincerity and always learning.” Curriculum Coordinator for Physical Education and Health, 
Christine Wanner, and P.E. teacher, Jeff Doornweerd, will provide a brief presentation on the contributions of the P.E. 
program towards developing these elements of the Vision of a Graduate.  This presentation will demonstrate how the high 
school course, “Cooperative Games”, is implemented to support the Vision of a Graduate goals.  Christine and Jeff will 
also share the future improvements to the program.   
 

                                   

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 5 of 40) Page 1 of 2 General Attachment: BOE Meeting Memo May 16_ 2022.pdf (Page 1 of 2)



General Attachment: BOE Meeting Memo May 16_ 2022.pdf

4. Mid-Quarter Financial Update 
At the end of the third quarter, Chief Financial Officer, Elio Longo, reported that there was a significant closing of the 
shortfalls that were originally reported at the end of the second quarter.  This was attributed to savings in transportation (i.e. 
collapsing of routes), substitutes (i.e the inability to secure substitutes), and the freeze on certain expenditures as 
recommended by Elio.  At that point, I asked Elio to provide a “mid-quarter” update. I do not anticipate that this will be a 
regular practice, but given the timing and need to approve expenditures over the last month of the school year, we are 
providing this update to the Board so that we can be assured of preventing any year end shortfalls.   

 
Discussion/Action  

 
1. Approval of Pathways Academy as Alternative Education Program for 2022-2023 School Year 

Each year, the Board is asked to approve the Staples High School Pathways Academy as an Alternative Education Program 
for the following school year.  Authorization is sought to submit an application to the State Department of Education for an 
alternative program.  
 
To provide the Board with a status on the Pathways Academy, I asked Staples High School Principal, Stafford Thomas, to 
provide a statement on the program.  Please see Stafford’s comments in the attached memo. 

 
2. Approval of Tentative Agreement with Westport School Custodians 

The Board’s negotiating committee reached an agreement with the Westport School Custodians bargaining group.  The 
Board is asked to take action to approve the agreement.   

 
3.  Approval of Tentative Agreement with Westport Educational Association of Paraprofessionals 

The Board’s negotiating committee reached an agreement with the Westport Educational Association of Paraprofessionals 
bargaining group.  The Board is asked to take action to approve the agreement. 
 

4. Budget Reconciliation 2022-2023 
Each year, the Board takes action to adopt a final budget following the formal approval of the Representative Town 
Meeting of the Town of Westport.  The Board is asked to adopt a final budget for the 2022-2023 school year in the amount 
of $129,500,574, representing a 3.11% increase from the 2021-2022 budget, as approved by the Representative Town 
Meeting of the Town of Westport on May 3, 2022. 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 6 of 40) Page 2 of 2 General Attachment: BOE Meeting Memo May 16_ 2022.pdf (Page 2 of 2)



^ Back to Agenda ^ General Attachment: Meeting_ May 2_ 2022_______Staples High School.pdf

Meeting: May 2, 2022 Staples High School

WESTPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board Members Present: Administrators Present:
Lee Goldstein Chair Thomas Scarice Superintendent of Schools
Liz Heyer Vice Chair Anthony Buono Asst. Superintendent, Teaching and Learning
Neil Phillips Secretary Michael Rizzo Asst. Superintendent, Pupil Personnel Services
Christina Torres
Dorie Hordon John Bayers Asst. Superintendent,Human Resources and
Kevin Christie General Admin.

Board Members Absent: Administrators Absent:
Robert Harrington Elio Longo

PUBLIC CALL TO ORDER: 6:10 p.m., Staples High School, Room 1028

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Discussion of Attorney-Client Privileged Memorandum Regarding
Possible Title IX Review

Lee Goldstein moved at 6:10 p.m. to enter into executive session to discuss an attorney-client
privileged memorandum regarding possible Title IX review; seconded by Kevin Christie and
passed unanimously. All Board members participated. Thomas Scarice and John Bayers joined
the executive session at the invitation of the Board. Jessica Richman Smith, Dori Antonetti, and
Julie Jaquays from Shipman and Goodwin joined the executive session at the invitation of the
Board. The executive session adjourned at 7:15 p.m.

RESUME PUBLIC SESSION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 7:26 p.m., Staples High School, Cafeteria B
(Room 301)

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM BOARD AND ADMINISTRATION

PUBLIC QUESTIONS/COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

MINUTES: Neil Phillips moved to approve the minutes of April 25, 2022; seconded by Christina
Torres and passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION

Secondary Visual Art Presentation

DISCUSSION/ACTION

Elementary ARPA Presentation

Be it resolved that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, the Board of
Education requests an allocation of ARPA Funds from the Town of Westport in the total amount of
$216,056 to support the following educational improvements:

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 7 of 40) Page 1 of 2 General Attachment: Meeting_ ... _____Staples High School.pdf (Page 1 of 2)



General Attachment: Meeting_ May 2_ 2022_______Staples High School.pdf

a. GFS & KHS - Outdoor Classrooms
b. CES, LLS, SES - School Sensory Lifestyle Equipment

MOTION: Christina Torres
SECOND: Kevin Christie
RESULT: Passed unanimously
VOTE: 6-0 (Robert Harrington not present)

School Climate Survey

Be it resolved that, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, the
Westport Board of Education approves the content and purpose of the Climate Survey as
presented at the May 2 Board of Education meeting.

MOTION: Neil Phillips
SECOND: Lee Goldstein
RESULT: Passed unanimously
VOTE: 6-0 (Robert Harrington not present)

2023-2024 School Calendar

Be it resolved that, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, the Board
of Education approves the 2023-2024 school year calendar as presented on May 2, 2022.

MOTION: Christina Torres
SECOND: Liz Heyer
RESULT: Passed unanimously
VOTE: 6-0 (Robert Harrington not present)

ADJOURNMENT: Dorie Hordon moved to adjourn at 9:21 pm; seconded by Christina Torres and passed
unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,
Neil Phillips, Secretary
(Minutes written by Jennifer Caputo)

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 8 of 40) Page 2 of 2 General Attachment: Meeting_ ... _____Staples High School.pdf (Page 2 of 2)



^ Back to Agenda ^ General Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

PRESENTATION OF DRAFT TEST FITS
for LONG LOTS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL SITE

-
Westport BOE Meeting

5/16/2022

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 9 of 40) Page 1 of 8 General Attachment: 2022-05- ... ts test fit presentation.pdf (Page 1 of 8)



General Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

H

Y

D

E

 

L

A

N

E

H

Y

D

E

 

L

A

N

E

M

E

A

D

O

W

 
B

R

O

O

K

 
L

A

N

E

B

A

U

E

R

 

P

L

A

C

E

B

A

U

E

R

 

P

L

A

C

E

 

E

X

T

E

N

S

I

O

N

LRC Engineering & Surveying, LLC
LRC Environmental Services, Inc.

LRC Engineering & Surveying, DPC

Landscape Architecture

Land Planning
Civil Engineering
Environmental Services
Land Surveying

85 Civic Center Plaza, Suite 204
Poughkeepsie NY 12601
Tel: 845.243.2880

160 West Street, Suite E
Cromwell, CT 06416
Tel: 860.635.2877

www.lrcconsult.com

1 International Blvd, Suite 400
Mahwah, NJ 07495
Tel: 908.603.5730

13 HYDE LANE
TOWN OF WESTPORT

FAIRFIELD COUNTY, CONNECTICUT

LONG LOTS ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL

G R O U P

C1.1

EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS
 AERIAL

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 10 of 40) Page 2 of 8 General Attachment: 2022-05- ... ts test fit presentation.pdf (Page 2 of 8)



General Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

H

Y

D

E

 

L

A

N

E

H

Y

D

E

 

L

A

N

E

M

E

A

D

O

W

 
B

R

O

O

K

 
L

A

N

E

B

A

U

E

R

 

P

L

A

C

E

B

A

U

E

R

 

P

L

A

C

E

 

E

X

T

E

N

S

I

O

N

LRC Engineering & Surveying, LLC
LRC Environmental Services, Inc.

LRC Engineering & Surveying, DPC

Landscape Architecture

Land Planning
Civil Engineering
Environmental Services
Land Surveying

85 Civic Center Plaza, Suite 204
Poughkeepsie NY 12601
Tel: 845.243.2880

160 West Street, Suite E
Cromwell, CT 06416
Tel: 860.635.2877

www.lrcconsult.com

1 International Blvd, Suite 400
Mahwah, NJ 07495
Tel: 908.603.5730

13 HYDE LANE
TOWN OF WESTPORT

FAIRFIELD COUNTY, CONNECTICUT

LONG LOTS ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL

G R O U P

C1.0

EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 11 of 40) Page 3 of 8 General Attachment: 2022-05- ... ts test fit presentation.pdf (Page 3 of 8)



General Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

Westport – Long Lots Elementary School
DRAFT test fit options  - 5/5/2022
Option 1 (without Stepping Stones)

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 12 of 40) Page 4 of 8 General Attachment: 2022-05- ... ts test fit presentation.pdf (Page 4 of 8)



General Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

Westport – Long Lots Elementary School
DRAFT test fit options  - 5/5/2022
Option 1a (with Stepping Stones)

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 13 of 40) Page 5 of 8 General Attachment: 2022-05- ... ts test fit presentation.pdf (Page 5 of 8)



General Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

Westport – Long Lots Elementary School
DRAFT test fit options  - 5/5/2022
Option 2 (without Stepping Stones)

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 14 of 40) Page 6 of 8 General Attachment: 2022-05- ... ts test fit presentation.pdf (Page 6 of 8)



General Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

Westport – Long Lots Elementary School
DRAFT test fit options  - 5/5/2022
Option 2a (with Stepping Stones)

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 15 of 40) Page 7 of 8 General Attachment: 2022-05- ... ts test fit presentation.pdf (Page 7 of 8)



General Attachment: 2022-05-16 Long Lots test fit presentation.pdf

Westport – Long Lots Elementary School
DRAFT test fit options  - 5/5/2022
Option 2a showing completed site potential

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 16 of 40) Page 8 of 8 General Attachment: 2022-05- ... ts test fit presentation.pdf (Page 8 of 8)



^ Back to Agenda ^ General Attachment: AP Science update_ Board of Education 5_16_22.pdf

Status of Science AP 
Courses

Will J on es , Dom in ick  Mess in a  an d AJ  Sch eetz

Where SHS students are and where we want them to be

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 17 of 40) Page 1 of 7 General Attachment: AP Scien ... ard of Education 5_16_22.pdf (Page 1 of 7)



General Attachment: AP Science update_ Board of Education 5_16_22.pdf

Current AP of fer ings in Science at SHS

Courses Currently offered
-AP Biology (AP Bio)

-AP Chemistry (AP Chem)

-AP Physics (APC-E&M and APC-Mechanics & AP1)

-AP Environmental Studies (APES)

-AP Computer Science (APCSP, APCSA*)

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 18 of 40) Page 2 of 7 General Attachment: AP Scien ... ard of Education 5_16_22.pdf (Page 2 of 7)



General Attachment: AP Science update_ Board of Education 5_16_22.pdf

How  many students access AP Science at 
SHS?

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 19 of 40) Page 3 of 7 General Attachment: AP Scien ... ard of Education 5_16_22.pdf (Page 3 of 7)



General Attachment: AP Science update_ Board of Education 5_16_22.pdf

How  do SHS Students Perform on AP Science 
Tes ts?

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 20 of 40) Page 4 of 7 General Attachment: AP Scien ... ard of Education 5_16_22.pdf (Page 4 of 7)



General Attachment: AP Science update_ Board of Education 5_16_22.pdf

How  does SHS AP Science Instructional  Time 
Com pare to Oth er Sch ools?

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 21 of 40) Page 5 of 7 General Attachment: AP Scien ... ard of Education 5_16_22.pdf (Page 5 of 7)



General Attachment: AP Science update_ Board of Education 5_16_22.pdf

AP Science Courses f rom a Student’s 
Perspective

Natalie Bandura
-Courses Completed

-Favorite Activities

-Keep, Stop, Start…

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 22 of 40) Page 6 of 7 General Attachment: AP Scien ... ard of Education 5_16_22.pdf (Page 6 of 7)



General Attachment: AP Science update_ Board of Education 5_16_22.pdf

Summary

-Many Students Take AP Science Courses at SHS.

-SHS Students Receive High Scores on AP Science Tests.

-Instructional Minutes in Science AP Courses at SHS are 
the Lowest in our Sample.

-A Student’s Perspective for Improvement

Questions?

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 23 of 40) Page 7 of 7 General Attachment: AP Scien ... ard of Education 5_16_22.pdf (Page 7 of 7)



^ Back to Agenda ^ General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

Staples High School  PE Program

Cooperative Games

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 24 of 40) Page 1 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 1 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

Westpor t  Heal th and Physical  Educat ion 
Cor e Pu r p ose

Empower s tudents  to be 
mentally, phys ically, s ocially, and 

emotionally healthy.

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 25 of 40) Page 2 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 2 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

The goals of  Cooperat ive Gam es happen through 
p h ys ica l ch a llen ges  an d  socia l in t er act ion s :

Goals  of the course:

1) Experience group proces s  and group problem solving
2) Develop Interpersonal and Collaborative Skills

● Practice various  Functional Roles
● Identify and handle Dys functional roles

1) Handle s etbacks  and failures  as  learning and growth opportunities

Ultimately, s tudents  learn a skill s et that allows  them to be succes s ful in group projects , future 
work s cenarios  and anywhere in life  where group problem solving is  needed.

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 26 of 40) Page 3 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 3 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

Kolb’ s Exper ient ial  Learning Cycle
Cycle

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 27 of 40) Page 4 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 4 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

A Picture is wor th a thousand words…..

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 28 of 40) Page 5 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 5 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

“ Thief  in  the Night ” “ Rot a t in g 
Webs”

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 29 of 40) Page 6 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 6 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

“ Toxic Waste”

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 30 of 40) Page 7 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 7 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 31 of 40) Page 8 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 8 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

Annie Davis https://msanniedavis.wordpress.com/2018/02/20/design-thinking-and-the-
experiential-learning-process/

Conceptual ize Exper im entExper ience Exper ienceRef lect

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 32 of 40) Page 9 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 9 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

Cont r ibut ing Ci t izens and M astery Based Diplom a

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 33 of 40) Page 10 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 10 of 11)



General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf

What ’ s Next : Chal lenge Course

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 34 of 40) Page 11 of 11 General Attachment: May 16 BOE presentation.pdf (Page 11 of 11)



^ Back to Agenda ^ General Attachment: Interim Financial Report 5-16-22.pdf

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 35 of 40) Page 1 of 5 General Attachment: Interim Financial Report 5-16-22.pdf (Page 1 of 5)











^ Back to Agenda ^ General Attachment: Pathways BOE Meeting Memo May 16_ 2022.docx.pdf

WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS

THOMAS SCARICE
Superintendent of Schools

110 Myrtle Avenue
Westport, Connecticut 06880

Telephone: (203) 341-1025
Fax: (203) 341-1029

tscarice@westportps.org

To: Westport Board of Education Members
From: Thomas Scarice, Superintendent of Schools

Stafford Thomas, Staples High School Principal
Re: Pathways 2021-2022
Date May 13, 2022

Pathways Academy has achieved multiple successes this year because of the collaborative efforts of the four
teachers; Tony Coccoli, Mike Forgette, Dan Heaphy and Ann Neary, administrator Pat Micinilio, social
workers, guidance counselors and special education teachers who work tirelessly to meet students where they
are academically and emotionally and move them ahead to reach their potential and educational goals. There
is great news as our eleven seniors are graduating on time, with their class, in spite of a rough start in their
high school experiences that might have prevented this achievement. They are heading to Loyola Marymount
in LA, Mississippi University, University of Utah, High Point and have robust gap years planned studying the
environment and traveling overseas.

With support from the Department Chairs of Social Studies and English,the new course being piloted at SHS,
African American, Black, Latinx and Puerto Rican Studies, was co-taught to include literature, providing
students with an engaging course of study and double credits. In this curriculum, students developed their
social awareness and self awareness skills while researching historic and current abolitionists and activists.
Their culminating projects to elevate voices include designing a tee shirt as a fundraiser for environmental
activist Kween Werk and planting a garden in unused space as a tribute to Ron Finley. Also, popular among
students were Personal Finance, Discrete Math and Medical Terminology. Students excelled academically in
these courses while learning useful skills for life after high school.The manner in which academics are
presented, allows students to feel safe taking academic risks or as one student said,”you made me feel smart
and worthy”.

Attendance rates improved by 34% and tardies decreased by 60%.  Several Pathways students were awarded
the Student of the Month this school year.

Students have been able to earn grade point averages in A level classes,10% above where they were prior to
Pathways. The individualized instruction and solid relationships with teachers and peers has created an
environment for success across all social emotional skills, especially relationship building ones. The
community is empathetic, as evidenced when one student was in a serious automobile accident. Students
rallied, sending handmade cards with well wishes, picking up small gifts to give her comfort and staying in
touch every single day as she recuperated.  Another highlight of the school year occurred in January when
Pathways hosted a graduation ceremony for a senior who met his graduation requirements before the end of
the '22 school year. This student has an exceptionally challenging high school experience, but he met with
success in the Pathways program and the entire community celebrated his achievement. Every staff member
and many students gave testimonials to this young man who, prior to being in Pathways, had not had a
positive educational experience.  Counselors, teachers from outside of Pathways, social workers, and
administrators attended this ceremony and provided their personal testimonials as well. Pathways students
also select the activities for our communal Morning Meeting. Favorites include Compliment Day where they
encourage one another and Best Books, highlighting a favorite read others might enjoy. Currently, Pathways
students are problem solving by addressing a school-wide problem of where students can store sports
equipment.

Board of Education Regular Meeting - PACKET - (Page 40 of 40) Page 1 of 1General Attachment: Pathways ... g Memo May 16_ 2022.docx.pdf (Page 1 of 1)


